STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
33 CAPITOL STREET
CONCORD, NH 03301
STATE VICTIM ASSISTANCE GRANT APPLICATION — COVER PAGE

a) Program Title County Victim Witness Advocate

b) Authorized Purpose Area_Not Applicable

c¢) Grant Starting Date:  07/01/2012 Ending Date: 06/30/2013

d) Program Implementation Date July 1, 2012

e) State Funds Authorized $  26.500

f) Agency Name Belknap County

g) Chief Elected Official/Head of Agency' '

Name Edward D. Philpot, Jr. Title  Commissioner - Chair

Telephone 603-5275400 Fax 603-527-5409 Email ephilpot@belknapcounty.org
h) Program Director

Name MdlissaC. Guldbrandsen Title BelknapCounty Attomey

Telephone 603-527-5440 Fax 603-527-5449 Email meuldbandsen@belknapoountyorg

i) Fiscal Officer

Name Glen Warng Title  FinanceDirector

Telephone603-527-5440 Fax 603-527-5409  Email gwaing@hedlkaapoountyore




APPLICATION NARRATIVE

Please limit your narrative statements {o six pages.

Program Description

Briefly describe your program including collaborative partners, services to be provided,
community education and outreach efforts. Attachments are welcome.

The Belknap County Victim Assistance Program provides a variety of services to crime victims at
the Superior Court level and in 2011 juvenile cases in the q™" and,ﬁfh District Courts. The program
has one coordinator who works out of the County Attorney’s Office. Their caseload includes all
manner of felony offenses in the Superior Court as well as all misdemeanor appeals from the 4™
District Court and 6™ District Court. The coordinator collaborates and interacts with the courts,
social service agencies, police departments, counselors, medical providers and others in working
with victims. The following are some of the services extended to victims:

Direct Services

B Provides crisis intervention/support to victims and witnesses to meet urgent emotional or
physical needs. ‘

M Makes referrals about available social mental health and medical services that may assist
victims and witnesses. _

B Serves as the victims’/witnesses’ guide through the criminal justice process, advising of
the status of cases, hearing dates, plea negotiations, etc.

M Advises victims of the NH Victims Compensation Program for medical bills, medications,
counseling costs, lost wages, moving costs, funeral bills, etc. and assists victims in
applying for the program.

- Notifies alt victims of each court appearance and hearings on a defendant’s case.

Works with clerk of court on scheduling matters.
Coordinates victims’/witness’ scheduled court appearances to minimize inconvenience
and disruption.

B Prepare witnesses for testifying to allay fears; instill a positive attitude toward the
criminal justice system to assist with prowdmg the State with cooperative, competent,
well-informed witnesses.

B Attends depositions, motions hearings and trials to provide support and information to

victims/witnesses.

Assists prosecution team with trial strategies.

Locates victims/witnesses who have dropped out of sight.

Advise victims of their rights under RSA 21-M:8-k, including the right to address the court

at sentencing, the right to be notified of parole board hearings and other sentencing

changes and the right to be notified of an appeal.

B Assists victims with the preparation of victim impact statements and reading those
statements to court.

B Assist witnesses in obtaining witness fees.

W Facilitate the swift return of property being used as evidence.



B Assist victims and witnesses in obtaining protection from harm or threats of harm arising
out of cooperation with the judicial process.

B Increase public education/awareness regarding victims’ needs.

B Contact victims’ insurance companies, hospitals, and medical officers to collect restitution
documents for sentencing.

B Participate on County Multi-Disciplinary Team at the Greater Lakes Child Advocacy Center
for child victims of physical and sexual assault.

B Liaison with other state victim programs.

Program Goals, Objectives & Effectiveness

Briefly describe the goals and objectives of the program for the grant period. What activities will
be accomplished? How will you measure the effectiveness of your program and client satisfaction?
‘Attachments are welcome.

The goals and objectives of the program for the grant program are to continue and improve our
efforts to assist crime victims in the Belknap County Superior Court and the 4™ and 6™ Circuit
Courts on juvenile cases and to prevent re-victimization through the criminal court process. In
particular, we continue to reach out to victims early on in the court process and to gather input
from them to enable plea offers to be made at the earliest practicable time. The goal for this will
be to determine early on in the prosecution, which cases will go to trial and which can be
resolved through negotiated dispositions. The coordinator can then spend the extra time
needed focusing on trial preparation with victims who require this. With our input, our court has
built in a time schedule for plea offers and negotiations well in advance of trial. This will ensure
that victims will not needlessly be inconvenienced or experience stress wondering if a defendant
will take responsibility for their actions and plead guilty.

Many times the effectiveness of our program is measured by the thanks and praise we receive
from victims and other participants in the process. Other times we take note of complaints or
suggestions in revising our program.

We continue to work with law enforcement in making referrals to our office even long before
charges are brought so we can support them in the interim or assist with explaining why there is
a delay in arrest or prosecution. In addition, on some occasions we are meeting with victims in
advance of grand jury indictments and have attempted tc keep them apprised of the
investigation and pre-indictment process that may involve bail revocation or bail review
hearings.

We have established a better procedure for last minute witness notification to avoid needless
trips to court when the docket experiences sudden changes. We are using e-mail whenever
possible in notifications and that has assisted that process tremendously. This is an area, which
we are constantly trying to improve and work with the court system on as well.



The addition of the Greater Lakes Child Advocacy Center in Belknap County provides for earlier
intervention in those cases that are referred to the county attorney’s office. The victim/witness
coordinator is a member of the child protection team.

Benefits of This Funding

Please provide a brief narrative as to the benefits this grant assists your organization in
accomplishing. Please include the approximate number of victims served, the benefit to the
community and a brief sustainability plan should funding no longer be available. It would also be
most helpful if you could include a case study of a victim you were able to assist.

In 2011, the County Attorney's Office had 733 indictments and the Betknap County Attorney
Victim Witness Coordinator assisted those victims associated with those cases. As you're aware,
the Belknap County Attorney’s Office has only 1 Victim/Witness Coordinator who is responsible
for all these cases. The Victim Witness Coordinator to the County Attorney’s Office helps to
create cooperating victims and witnesses which assist in the prosecution of crimes. Additionally,
victims of crime are traumatized and need guidance through the criminal justice system. The
v/w coordinator assists the prosecutor in communicating to the victim the case status as the v/w
coordinator has more interaction with the victim. The v/w coordinator collects the restitution
documents from victims for the restitution figures that are necessary for each case. The v/w
coordinator makes notes of any i‘nput the victim provides for the outcome of each case. If the
defendant is breaking bail conditions by contacting the victim, the v/w coordinator would
provide information on reporting the bail violation and follow up to the police department.
Many times the police department request the bail condition in writing so the v/w coordinator
faxes the bail conditions so they may follow up with the victim.

Without a program Belknap County would not able to comply with guaranteed rights to victims
under the NH Victim Bill of Rights, Section 21-M-M:8-K. ‘

Case Study:

Victims and their caregivers are the core of any such criminal case and have been known to be
uncooperative and even hostile when they do not understand the process and perceive
themselves to be without a voice in their system. By imparting knowledge and ongoing support,
the v/w coordinator strengthens and empowérs them so they can endure the criminal justice
process and help their child and themselves recover from this type of trauma.

Our office prosecuted a 68 year old defendant for an Attempted Aggravated Felonious Sexual
Assault, an Aggravated Felonicus Sexual Assault and Sexual Assault on a young female victim.
The 10 vear old female victim revealed that she was afraid to go back to the defendant’s home
for a planned visit. When her mother inquired the girl disclosed the “secret” that the defendant
had been molesting her. Police were notified and the child and her family met investigators at
the Greater Lakes Child Advocacy Center {(GLCAC) for an interview about what occurred. The



forensic interviewer at the GLCAC Child Advocacy Center spoke with the child while members of
the GLCAC protective team (Police Detective, victim/witness coordinator, prosecutor} watched
via closed circuit TV. The child recounted the abuse she suffered for about 4 years. She
explained she wanted to tell before, but she felt she would not be believed and thought
something bad would happen once she told the truth about the defendant who, as with many
cases, was a trusted family friend. He was also a member of the same church that the victim’s
family attended. The victim witness coordinator provided emotional support to the victim, her
mother and her father from the onset. The parents, overwhelmed with guilt for feeling they did
not protect their child and enraged that a trusted friend betrayed them, received
encouragement, insight and education. The victim witness coordinator was able over time to
help them understand that children are in danger most from people who are trusted and how
many excellent parents are unaware of the secretive grooming that an offender uses to get kids
used to inappropriate touching. In addition, the victim witness coordinator made referrals for
counseling and social services and informed the family as to what fo expect in the criminal
process and the possible outcomes. The victim witness coordinator had numerous conversations
with the parents to help them understand the process of victimization, the court system and how
best to assist the victim, themselves and the rest of their family. Follow up meetings were
conducted at the office with explanations of the various motions and court proceedings that
were occurring. In this case and in many cases, trials and hearings may be postponed for a
variety of reasons, cauéing a great deal of stress and frustration to the family and the victim.
Having only one judge to conduct all the trials and hearings has clearly interfered with prompt
case resolution. As the case was prepared with the child, the victim witness coordinator worked
with the victim on a court tour to orient her and to assist her in feeling safe during trial and
understanding how the proceedings worked and who all the different professionals were in the
justice system. In this case, another child wouid be testifying so there was a court tour for that
child as well. Many meetings with the victim and her family took place at the court house but it
is not unusual for the victim witness coordinator to travel to homes to explain things in a more
comforting setting to victims’ and families. Plea offers were negotiated and rejected with the
defendant eventually opting for a trial and ultimately being found not guilty by jury. The victim
witness coordinator assisted in the explanation of the “not guilty” verdict to the victim and her
family. Even though the end result was not what we strove for, the support services to the
victim and her family are essential to their recovery. This was only one case example of the
service to our community by the Belknap County victim witness coordinator, without which
prosecutions would be difficult at best.

Sustainability Plan

The County Attorney’s office relies on the Victim-Witness Coordinator as an integral part of the
functioning of the office. We would not be able to cover her role with existing staff, if she was no
longer part of the office. As such, it would be necessary for the County to provide the full
funding for this position. ‘The position is so important to the functioning of the office, that we
would forgo other budgetary items, if required to do so, in order to shift funds to fully support



this position. While our budget is currently “bare-bones,” this position has been a part of the
budget — at least in part—for twenty years. 1t is anticipated that the County Commissioners
would support fully funding the positiorrif that was required.



New Hampshire Department of Justice
~ Budget Detail Worksheet

Purpose: The Budget Detail Worksheet may be used as a guide to assist you in the preparation of
the budget and budget narrative. Y'ou may submit the budget and budget narrative using this form
or in the format of your choice (plain sheets, your own form, or a variation of this form).
However, all required information (including the budget narrative) must be provided. Any
category of expense not applicable to your budget may be deleted.

A. Personnel - List each position by title and name of employee, if available. Show the annual
salary rate and the percentage of time to be devoted to the project. Compensation paid for
employees engaged in grant activitics must be consistent with that paid for similar work within the
applicant organization. '

Name/Position - Computation Federal Match

Barbara Belmont 59,982./40 hré/wk 25,000. 34,982,

SUB-TOTAL___ 59,982.

B. Fringe Benefits - Fringe benefits should be based on actual known costs or an established
formula. Fringe benefits are for the personnel listed in budget category (A) and only for the
percentage of time devoted to the project. Fringe benefits on overtime hours are limited to FICA,
Workman’s Compensation, and Unemployment Compensation. Individual fringe benefits must be
listed by amount and percentage.

Name/Position ' Computation Federal Match

SUB-TOTAL 0

Total Personnel & Friange Benefits 59,982,




C. Travel - Itemize travel expenses of project personnel by purpose (e.g., staff to training, field
interviews, advisory group meeting, etc.). Show the basis of computation (e.g., six people to 3-day
training at $X airfare, $X lodging, $X subsistence). In training projects, travel and meals for
trainees should be listed separately. Show the number of trainees and the unit costs involved.
Identify the location of travel, if known. Indicate source of Travel Policies that apply, Applicant or
Federal Travel Regulations.

Purpose of Travel Location Item Computation Federal Matich
Victim/Witness Advocates  San Diego, CA $1,500.00 0
Annual Meeting

TOTAL_$1,500.

D. Equipment - List non-expendable items that are to be purchased. Non-expendable equipment
is tangible property having a useful life of more than two years and an acquisition cost of $5,000
or more per unit. (Note: Organization’s own capitalization policy may be used for items costing

less than $5,000). Expendable items should be included either in the “supplies” category or in the . . -

“Qther” category. Applicants should analyze the cost benefits of purchasing versus leasing
equipment, especially high cost items and. those subject to rapid technical advances. Rented or
leased equipment costs should be listed in the “Contractual” category. Explain how the equipment
is necessary for the success of the project. Attach a narrative describing the procurement method
-to be used.

Htem Computation Federal Match

TOTAL 0




E. Supplies - List items by type (office supplies, postage, training materials, copying paper, and
expendable equipment items costing less than $5,000, such as books, hand held tape recorders)
and show the basis for computation. (Note: Organization’s own capitalization policy may be used
for items costing less than $5,000). Generally, supplies include any materials that are expendable
or consumed during the course of the project.

Supply Items Computation Federal Match

TOTAL 0

F. Construction - As a rule, construction costs are not allowable. In some cases, minor repairs or
renovations may be allowable. Check with the program office before budgeting funds in this
category.

Purpose Description 6f Work _ ) ' Federal Match
Program category Not Approved by NH Department of Justice

TOTAL 0

G. Consultants/Contracts - Indicate whether applicant’s formal, written Procurement Policy or
the Federal Acquisition Regulations are followed.

Consultant Fees: For each consultant enter the name, if known, service to be provided, hourly or
daily fee (8-hour day), and estimated time on the project. Consultant fees in excess of $450 per
day require additional justification and prior approval from OJP.

Name of Consultant Service Provided  Computation Federal Match

Subtotal 0



Consultant Expenses: List all expenses to be paid from the grant to the individual consultants in
addition to their fees (i.c., travel, meals, lodging, etc.)

Jtem Location Computation Federal Match

Subtotal 0

Contracts: Provide a description of the product or service to be procured by contract and an
estimate of the cost. Applicants are encouraged to promote free and open competition in awarding

contracts. A separate justification must be provided for sole source contracts in excess of
$100,000.

Ttem Federal Match

- Subtotal 0

TOTAL 0




H. Other Costs - List items (e.g., rent, reproduction, telephone, janitorial or security services, and
investigative or confidential funds) by major type and the basis of the computation. For example,
provide the square footage and the cost per square foot for rent, or provide a monthly rental cost
and how many months to rent.

Description Computation Federal Match

TOTAL___ 0

I. Indirect Costs - Indirect costs are allowed only if the applicant has a federally approved
indirect cost rate. A copy of the rate approval, (a fully executed, negotiated agreement), must be
attached. If the applicant does not have an approved rate, one can be requested by contacting the
applicant’s cognizant Federal agency, which will review all documentation and approve a rate for
the applicant organization, or if the applicant’s accounting system permits, costs may be allocated
in the direct costs categories. '

Description Computation . Federal Match

Requires applicant have an approved federal indirect cost rate.

TOTAL 0



Budget Summary- When you have completed the budget worksheet, transfer the totals for each
category to the spaces below. Compute the total direct costs and the total project costs. Indicate
the amount of Federal requested and the amount of non-Federal (match) funds that will support the

project.

Budget Category Amount Federal Match
A. Personnel 25.,000. - 34.982.
B. Fringe Benefits

C. Travel 1.500. 0
D. Equipment

E. Supplies

F. Construction
G. Consultants/Contracts
H. Other

Total Direct Costs

I. Indirect Costs

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS

Federal Request and non-federal match amount

26.,500.

e E——

26.500.

34.982.

34.982.

e —



NH DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE - GRANT APPLICATION
STATE VICTIM ASSISTANCE PROGRAM GUIDELINES AND CONDITIONS

I, the below-named individual, on behalf of the below-named agency (hereinafter
referred to as “subgrantee”), am legally authorized to submit and accept grants on behalf of the
applicant agency, and hereby certify that the grant program outlined in this application package
will adhere to the following guidelines and conditions:

1. The subgrantee assures that State funds received for this grant program will not be
used to supplant county and/or local funds that would otherwise be available for the program’s
purpose. The subgrantee further assures that the grant funds will be expended only for purposes

~and activities directly related to the funded program.

2. The subgrantee agrees to provide information on the program supported with State
grant funds as requested by the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Management
Unit.

3. The subgrantee authorizes representatives from the New Hampshire Department of
Justice to access and examine all records, books, papers, and/or documents related to the
program’s grant funds. Further, the subgrantee agrees to allow and cooperate with site
monitoring visits by the New Hampshire Department of Justice.

4. The subgrantee agrees to maintain detailed time and attendance records for any
personnel positions funded with these grant funds where 100% of the position’s activities are not
directly related to the funded program. For personnel positions that are 100% allowable under the
funded program, normal payroll records and documentation are sufficient.

5. The subgrantee agrees to obtain prior written approval from the New Hampshire
Department of Justice before making changes in program activities, designs, budgets, etc. as
outlined in the subgrantee’s approved grant application.

6. Equipment purchased with State grant funds shall be listed by the subgrantee on the
agency inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost, location,
and percentage of State grant funds.

7. The subgranteé agrees that the title to any equipment purchased with State grant
funds will revert back to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Management
Unit, when it is no longer being used for the program purposes for which it was acquired.

8. The subgrantee agrees to complete and keep on file, as appropriate, the Immigration and
Naturalization Service Employment Eligibility Form (I-9). This form is to be used by
the subgrantee to verify that persons employed by the subgrantee are eligible to work in the
United States.



NH DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE - GRANT APPLICATION
STATE VICTIM ASSISTANCE PROGRAM GUIDELINES AND CONDITIONS

{Continued)

9. The subgrantee agrees to inform victims and/or their guardians about the State Victims
Compensation Program and to offer assistance in the application process (this assistance may
simply entail a referral to a victim/witness advocate and/or victim advocate to facilitate the
process).

10. Grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the grant award document. No
guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future years.

The following three conditions are not required, but are strongly
recommended

11. The subgrantee assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the receipt
of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the subgrantee on the
grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability, a copy of the finding will be
submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Management Unit and to the U.S.
Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, 810 7" Street, NW,
Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional information regarding your obligations under civil rights
please reference the state website at http://doinh gov/grants/civil rights.htm! and understand if you
are awarded funding from this office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office, and
the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

12. If required, within 30 days from the date of the award, the subgrantee will submit for
approval, an acceptable Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) as required by 28 CFR
42.301 et seq. or a Certification Form to both the NH DOJ and the Office of Civil Rights, Office of
Justice Programs, US DOJ at 810 7% Street, NW, Washington, DC 20531. Failure to submit an
approved EEOP or Certification is a violation of the Program Guidelines and Conditions and may
result in suspension or termination of funding, until such time as the subgrantee is in compliance.
Additional information on EEOP requirements may be found here:
hitp://doj.nh.gov/grants/civii_rights.html.

13. The subgraniee must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful
access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may entail
providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when necessary. The
U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them comply with these
requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at www.lep.gov.



Edward D. Philpot, Jr.

Name and Title of Authorized Representative

Signature Date

Belknap County, 34 County Drive, Laconia NH 03246

Name and Address of Agency



NH DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
GRANT APPLICATION CHECKLIST

Please be sure that the following sections are completed and returned with your grant
application. Please include a completed copy of this checklist in your application.

COVER PAGE

PROGRAM DESCRIPTION

PROGRAM GOALS, OBJECTIVES & EFFECTIVNESS
__ PROGRAM BENEFITS

BUDGET ITEMIZATION

BUDGET NARRATIVE

SIGNED PROGRAM GUIDELINES AND CONDITIONS

MOST RECENT AGENCY AUDIT (if available)

MOST RECENT IRS FORM 990 (nonprofits only)

Any questions regarding this application should be directed to Susan Dearborn at 271-
8091 or susan.dearborn@doi.nh.gov. Please submit your application
electronically to this office at the email address prov1ded above by no
later than June 22, 2012.




COUNTY OF BELKNAP, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Annual Financial Statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners
County of Belknap, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activi- .
ties, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the County of Belknap, New Hampshire, as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2010, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibilify of the County’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Gunstock Area Commission, as of April 30, 2010 and for
the year then ended, which is a discretely presented component unit. Those finan-
cial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Gunstock
Area Commission, is based on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evi-
dence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presen-
tation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of Belknap,
New Hampshire, as of December 31, 2010, and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary
comparison for all funds for the year then ended in conformity with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the United States of America.

Addiional Qffices:
Andaver, MA 0 Greenfield, MA » Fllworth, ME ¢ Manchester, NH



The management’s discussion and analysis appearing on the following pages, and
the supplementary information appearing on page 57, is not a required part of the

" basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supple-
mentary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion_on it. :

Flefarssn ,L/M*CJ"‘F’“”“&\ £

Naéhua, New Hampshire
May 13, 2011



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the County of Belknap, New Hampshire, we offer readers this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County of Belknap,
New Hampshire for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

A. OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the basic
financial statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial state-
ments, and (3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements
themselves. ' :

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial state-
ments are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of our finances in
a manner similar to a private-sector business. -

The statement of net assets presents information on ail assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position is improving or deteriorating. :

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s
net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets
are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation and sick leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant
portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).
The governmental activities include Administration, Finance Office, Preventive
Services, County Attorney, Registry of Deeds, Sheriff, Youth Services,
Maintenance, Human Services, Corrections, Economic Development Council,
Gunstock Area Commission, Cooperative Extension, Outside Agencies, and
Interest Expense. The business-type activities include Nursing Home activities.

The component unit column in the government-wide financial statements is the
financial data of Gunstock Area Commission, which is reported as of its latest
fiscal operating year ended April 30, 2010. A component unit is an entity that is
legally separate from the County, but for which the County is financially
accountable.



Eund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is
used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be
divided into three categories: governmentat funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds. ' o

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially
the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial sﬁatements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term infiows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in gvaluating a
government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities
in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the County’s near-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.
An annual appropriated budget is adopted for all funds. A budgetary comparison

~ statement has been provided for all funds to demonstrate compliance with this
budget. '

Proprietary funds. ‘Proprietary funds are maintained as follows:

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-
type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Specifically, enter-
prise funds are used to account for nursing home operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the business-type
activities reported in the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the
benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are
not available to support the County’s own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information
that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-
wide and fund financial statements. '




Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accom-

panying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary infor-
mation which is required to be disclosed by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the total of assets exceeded
liabilities by $ 10,876,458 (i.e., net assets), a change of $ 1,684,202 in
comparisen to the prior year. o

As of the close of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported com-
bined ending fund balances of $ 8,241,367, a change of $ 1,480,660 in
comparison to the prior year. ‘

At the end of thé current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general -
fund was $ 24,427, a change of $ (3,368,745) in comparison fo the prior year.

Total long-term debt (i.e., bonds and capital lease payable) at the close of the
current fiscal year was $ 4,416,186, a change of $ (653,174) in comparison o
the prior year. ' : '

. GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The following is a summary of condensed government-wide financial data for the
current and prior fiscal years (in thousands).

Governmental Business-Type
Activities ™~ ~ Activities - Total Primary Government
20190 2009 2000 2009 2010 009

Current assets $ 5634 3 4,469 $ 1218 % 1,165 $ 6,350 5,634

Noncusrent assefs 7476 7,284 2,953 3,341 10,429 10,625

Total assets 13,110 11,753 4,169 4,508 17,279 16,255

tong-term liahilities outstanding 1,145 1,240 3,090 3,460 4,235 4,700

Other [iabilities 1,089 1,321 1,079 1,045 2,168 2,367

Total liabilities 2,234 2,561 4,169 4,506 6,403 7,067
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net 3,076 2,941 287¢ 2,603 5,955 5544

Restricted ) 7 3 - - 7 3

Unresfricted 7,793 6,248 {2,879) {2,603) 4914 3645

Total net assets $ 10878 & 9192 $ - $ - $ 10,876 9,182




Revenues:

Program revenues;

- Charges for services
Operating grants and

contributions

General revenues:
County taxes
fnvestment income
Other

Total revenues

Expenses:

Administration
Finance office
Preventive senvices
County attemey
Registry of deeds
Sheriff
Youth services
Infermation technology
Maintenance

- Human services
Caorrections - .
Economic Dévelopment Council

" Gunstock Area Commission
Cooperative extension
Qutside agencies
Interest expense
County Nursing Home

Total expenses
Change in net assets
- before transfers
Transfers in {out)

Increase {decrease)} in net assels
net assets

Net assets - beginning of
year, as restated

"Net assets - end of year

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Primary Government
2010 009 2010 2009 © 2010 2003
1,215 $ 1,259 7857 § 8070 $ &,072 8,329
1,330 1,497 - - . 1,330 1,497
44,333 14,394 - - 14,333 14,394
[ G - - ' 6 B
758 509 6 548 784 1,057
17,642 17,665 7.863 8,618 25,505 26,283
545 164 - - 545 164
188 288 - - 188 288
3 205 - - . 3 205
578 387 - - 578 387
439 348 - - 489 348
2,009 2,298 - - 2,002 2,298
167 119 - - 167 119
- 12 - - - 12
6586 323 - - 686 323
4559 4,263 - - 4,559 4263
3,130 3,844 - - ~ 3,130 3,844
75 75 - - 75 75
4 101 - - - 4 101
- 155 144 - - . 155 144
757 678 “ - . 757 678
97 172 - - a7 172
- - 10,379+ 10,727 10,379 10,727
13,442 13,421 10,379 - 10,727 23,821 24 148
4200 4244 (2,516) (2,109} 1,684 2.135
{2,516) {1,887) 2.516 2,109 - 222
1,684 2,357 - - 1,654 2,357
9,192 6,835 - - 9192 5,835
10,876 $ 9192 $§ - - $ - $ 10876 3 9,182

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a
government’s financial position. At the close of the most recent fiscal year, total
net assets were $ 10,876,458, a change of $ 1,684,202 from the prior year.

The largest portion of net assets $ 5,954,652 reflects our investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, land improvements, buildings and improvements, and
machinery and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that is still outstanding. These capital assets are used to provide services fo
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citizens: consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate
these liabilities. ‘

An additional portion of net assets $ 6,932 represents resources that are subject
to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of

~ unrestricted net assets $ 4,914,874 may be used to meet the government’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. '

‘Governmental and business-tvpe activities. Governmental and business-type
activities for the year resulted in a change in net assets of $ 1,684,202, Key
elements of this change are as follows:

_ _ All Funds
Operafing Restults:
Excess of revenues over budget : $ 1,153,043
Expenditures less than budgetary appropriations 2,707,519
Subtotal Operating Results o 3,860,562
Use of fund balance as a funding source (2,433,465)
Timing Differences:
Depreciation expense in excess of principal debt service - (385,308)
" Change in deferred debt financing expense , ' (737)
- Change in accrued interest o 2,797
~ Capital asset purchases 630,739
Change in net OPEB obligation . (44,968)
Change in deferred revenue (25,000)
Change in compensated absences 26,019
Conversion of Nursing Home from accrual to
modified accrual 53,563

Total ' ' $ 1,684,202

D. FINANCIAL ANA[,_YSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of governmental funds is to provide infor-
mation on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources.
Such information is useful in assessing financing requirements. n particular,




unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a govemmént’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the combined ending fund balance for all
funds was $ 8,241,367, a change of $ 1,480,660 in comparison to the prior year.
Key elements of this change are as follows:

Revenues greater than budget $ 1,153,043
Expenditures less than budget 2,707,519
Use of fund balance as a funding source (2,433,465)
Non-budgeted depreciation of Nursing Home (321,321)
~ Other Nursing Home adjustments 374,884

Total = - : $ 1,480,660

The general fund is the chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $ 24 427, while fotal fund
balance was $ 8,234,435, As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be
useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total
fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents .18 percent of total
general fund expenditures, while fotal fund balance represents 60.0 percent of
-that same amount.

Proprietary funds. Prbprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the business-type activities reported in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted
to $ (2,878,935), a change of $ (276,248) in comparison with the prior year.

Other factors concerning the finances of proprietary funds have already been
addressed in the entity-wide discussion of business-type activities.

. GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

There were no supplemental increases to the original budget during fiscal year
2010.

. CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. Total investment in capital assets for governmental and business-
type activities at year end amounted to $ 10,370,838 (net of accumulated deprecia-
tion), a change of $ (131,495) from the prior year. This investment in capital
assets includes land, land improvements, buildings and improvements, and
machinery and equipment.




Additional information on capital assets can be found in the notes fo the financial
statements.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, total bonded debt and
capital leases outstanding totaled $ 4,41 6,188, all of which was backed by the full
f_aith and credit of the government. :

~ Additional information on long-term debt can be found in the notes to the financial
statements. -

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is desighed to provide a general overview of the County’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to: :

Board of Commissioners
County of Belknap, New Hampshire
34 County Drive
|.aconia, New Hampshire 03246



COUNTY OF BELKNAP, NEW HAMPSHIRE
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2310

Gunstock Area
Primary Government Cornmission
Governmenial Business-Type {Cornponent Unit -
‘ Activities Activities Total April 30, 2010)
ASSETS
Cufrent: : . o
Cash and short-term investments - $ 5,458,717 $ 00 5 5,459,617 $ 1,388,836
Restricted cash 50,658 - 50,658 -
Investments - - - 154,576
Accounts receivable, net ' 36,256 623,673 659,929 131,328
Intergovernmental receivables, net 79,504 539,971 619,475 132,030
Due from primary government - ' - - 19,750
Inventory : . - © 42,410 T 42,410 133,586
Deferred debt financing expense 737 8,984 9,721 -
Other assets . 5,892 ' - T8,692 -
Prepaid expenses . . - - - 216,677
Noncurrent: )
Deferred debt financing expense, net of currerit partion 4,424 53,902 58,323 -
Internal batances 3,328,008 (3,328,008) - -
Capital Assets: ’
Land . : 144,829 9,957 154,786 2,197,595
Construction in progress . - - - 219,269
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation . ~ 3,999,092 5,216,960 10,216,052 10,442,725

TOTAL ASSETS 13,110,914 4,168,749 17,279,663 . 15,036,372

LIABILITIES ’ : -

Current: ) . : -7
Accounts payable . 126,718 223,743 350,461 541,617
Accrued expenses . 105,853 140,400 246,253 325,061
Due to other governments 449 669 - 449,669 -

" Due to fiduciary funds 800 - 800 -
Resfricted cash Hability 50,658 . - 50,658 -
Deferred revenue - - ' - 1,087,035
Gurrent portion of long-term liabilities: : L
- Bonds payable - ' : 125,667 484,333 610,000 492,236

Capital lease payable 37,462 - 37,462 95,980
Compensated absences : 192,910 230,361 423,271 -
Noncurrent: ’
Bonds payable, net of current portion 836,351 2,863,64¢ 3,700,000 5,992,459
Capital lease payable, net of current portion 68,724 - 68,724 98,831
Compensated absences, net of current portion 194,676 166,715 361,391 -
Net OPEB obligation ' 44,958 59,518 104,516 -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,234,456 4,168,749 6,403,205 8,633,219

NET ASSETS

Iinvested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,075,717 2,878,935 5,054 652 5,180,083

Restricted for:

Grants and other stafutory restrictions 6,932 - 6,932 . -
Unrestricted 7,793,809 (2,878,935) 4,914,874 223,070
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 10,876,458 % - $ 10,876,458 $ 5,403,153

See niotes to the financial statements.
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COUNTY OF BELKNAP, NEW HAMPSHIRE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2010

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governimental
7 General Funds “Funds
ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments $ 5,430,144 $ 28,573 $ 5458717
Restricted cash , 50,658 ‘ - 50,658
Accounts receivable S 36,256 - 36,256
Intergovernmental receivables 7 : 79,504 . - 79,504
- Due from other funds , _ 20,841 - -20,841
Advance to Nursing Home 3,328,008 - 3,328,008
Other assets o 8892 . . 8,892
TOTAL ASSETS $ 8,954,103 % 28,573 $ 8,982,676
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities: . -
Accounts payable 3 126,718 . § ST $ 126,718
Accrued expenses 92,623 - 92,623
Due {o other governments 449,669 oo . 449,669
Due to other funds ' - 21,641 . 21,841
Restricted cash liability ' 50,658 - 50,658
TOTAL LIABILITIES o 719,668 21,641 741,309
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Special purposes 4,882,000 - 4,882 000
Advances _ : 3,328,008 - 3,328,008
Unreserved:
Undesignated, reported in:
General fund : 24 427 - 24,427
Special revenue funds - - 6,932 6,932
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 8,234,435 6,932 ' 8,241,367

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 8,954,103 3 28,573 $ 8982676

See notes to the financial statements.
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COUNTY OF BELKNAP, NEW HAMPSHIRE
RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND
BALANCES TO NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2010

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES

Capital éssets uséd in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Deferred debt fihancing expense is not recognized in the current
period and, therefore, is not reported in the governmental funds.

In the Statement of Activities, interest is accrued on outstanding
long-term debt, whereas in governmental funds interest is not
reported until due.

w

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, capital lease payabie,

-compensated absences, and net OPEB obligation are not due and

payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds. : :

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See notes to the financial statements.
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COUNTY OF BELKNAP, NEW HAMPSHIRE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Revenues:
County taxes
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
[nvestment income
Miscelianeous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Administration
Finance office
Preventive services
County aftorney
Registry of deeds
Sheriff
Youth services
Maintenance
Human services
Correcticns
" Economic Development Council
 Gunstock Area Commission
Cooperative extension
Cutside agencies
Debi service:
Principal
Inferest

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses}:
Proceeds of capital lease
Transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Change in fund balance

Fund Equity, at Beginning of Yeér, as restated

Fund Equity, at End of Year

See notes to the financial statements.

Nonmajor Total
Govemmential Governmental
General Funds Funds

$ 14,333,387 $ - $ 14,333,387
1,215,496 - 1,215,496
1,294,161 35,806 1,329,967
6,411 7 6,418
739,250 3 739,253
17,588,705 35,816 17,624,521
446,295 - 416,295
231,444 - 231,444
3,387 - 3,387
- 571,424 - 571,424
- 486,030 - 486,030
2,024,133 35,806 2,059,939
188,255 - 188,255
1,035,646 “ 1,035,646
4,559,024 - 4,559,024
2,863,590 - 2,863,590
75,000 - 75,000
113,475 - 113,475
155,396 - 155,396
756,587 - 756,587
126,048 - 126,046
99 144 - 99,144
13,704,876 35,806 13,740,682
3.883,829 10 3,883,839
113,200 - 113,200

(2,516,379) ~ (2,516,379)

(2,403,179 ~ (2,403,179)
1,480,650 10 1,480,660
6,753,785 6,922 6,760,707
$ 8,234435 $ 6932 $ 8,241,367
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COUNTY OF BELKNAP, NEW HAMPSHIRE

REGONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 1,480,660

= Governmental funds report capital asset purchases as expenditures.
~ However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense:

Capital asset purchases . 630,739
Depreciation ’ {549,528}

= Inthe Statement of Actlivities, deferred debt financing expense for
) refinanced bonds payable is amoriized over the life of the bonds and
does not require the use of current financial resources, and therefore,
is not reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds. {737}

+ Revenues in ‘{he Statement of Activities that do not provide current
financial resources are fully deferred in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. Therefore, the
racognition of revenue for varicus types of accounts receivable
differ between the two statements. (25,000)

« The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides
current financial resources to governmental funds; while the repayment
of the principal of long-term debt consumes the fi nancial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on

net assets:
Proceeds from capital lease payable (143,200)
Repayments of capital lease payable : 41,624
Repayments of bonds payabie 126,046
Repayment of other long term obligation 109,750

« In the Siatement of Activiies, interest is accrued on outstanding
long-term debt, whereas in governmental funds interest is not
reported until due. 2,797

+ Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as
compensated absences and net OPER obligation, do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds.

Compensated absences 26,019
Net OPEB obligation (44,968}
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 1,684,202

See notes to the financial staterments.
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Revenues:

General Fund:
County taxes
Charges for services
Iptergovernmental
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Other Funds:

" Nursing Home
Grants and other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

General Fund:
Administration

- Finance office
Preventive services
County attormney
Registry of deeds
Sheriff
Youth services
Maintenance
Hurnan services
Corrections

COUNTY OF BELKNAP, NEW HAMPSHIRE

ALL BUDGETED FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES,
- AND EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Econornic Devetopment Council
* Gunstock Area Commission

Cooperative extension

Outside agencies

Contingency

Debt service - principal

Debt service - interest
Other Funds:

Nursing Home

Granis and other

Total Expendifures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures

Other Financing Scurces:
Use of fund balance

Excess of revenues over expendiures

See notes fo the financial statements.

Actual Variance with
Amounis - Final Budget
Original Finat {Budgetary Positive
Budget Budget Basis} {Negative}
$ 14,333,387 $ 14,333,387 $ 14,333,387 $ -
1,200,900 1,200,900 1,215,496 14,596
515,875 515875 1,196,197 680,322
5,000 5,000 6,411 1,411
480,829 480,829 739,250 258,421
7,609,852 ‘ 7,809,852 7.972,329 162477
- - 35,816 35,816
24,345,843 24,345,843 25,498,886 1,153,043
488,361 488,361 416,285 72,066
282,922 282,922 231,444 51,478
B - - - 3,387 {3,387)
632,025 632,025 571,424 60,601
502,427 502,427 486,030 16,397
1,805,305 1,995,305 1,902,862 92,443
193,274 183,274 168,240 25,034
1,913,062 1,813,062 1,035,646 877,416
5,035,000 5,035,000 4,550,024 475,976
2,991,508 2,991,508 2,793,712 197,796
75,000 75,000 75,000 -
117,420 117,420 113,475 3,945
155,396 155,396 155,396 -
756,587 756,587 756,587 -
75,00G 75,000 - 75,000
123,014 123,014 126,046 (3,032)
161,283 161,283 99,144 62,139
11,281,724 11,281,724 10,542,271 739,453
- - 35,806 {35,806}
26,779,308 26,779,308 24,071,789 2,707,519
(2,433,465) {2,433,465) 4,427,097 3,860,562
2,433,465 2,433,465 - (2,433,465}
$ - $ - $ 1,427,097 $ 1,427,097
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COUNTY OF BELKNAP, NEW HAMPSHIRE
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Busines_s-Type Aclivities
Enterprise Funds

Nursing
Home
ASSETS
Current: 4
Gash and short-term investments $ 900
Accounts receivable, net 623,673
. Intergovernmental receivables, net - 539,971
Inventory - : 42,41Q
Pefarred debt financing expense ' 8,984
" Total current assets 1,215,938
Noncurrent:
Deferred debt financing expense, net of current portion 53,902
Capital assets: ' :
Land 7 : 9,957
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 6,216,960
Total noncurrent assets 6,280,819
TOTAL ASSETS - 7,496,757 _
LIABILITIES
Current: :
Accounts payable 223,743
Accrued expenses ’ 140,400
Current portion of long-term liabilities: ] : '
Bonds payable 484,333
Compensated absences : 230,361
Total current liabiliies : 1,078,837
Noncurrent: ) '
Advance from General Fund 3,328,008
Bonds payable, net of current portion - 2,863,649
Compensated absences, net of current portion 166,715
Net OPEB obligation 59,548
Total noncurrent liabilities 6,417,920
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,496,757
NET ASSETS
invested in capital assets, net of related debt 2,878,935
Unrestricted (2,878,939)
TOTAL NET ASSETS B -

See notes to the financial statements.
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COUNTY QOF BELKNAP, NEW HAMPSHIRE

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES iN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Other

Total Operatiﬁg Revenues

- Operating Expenses:
Administrative
‘Maintenance and operations
Physical, speech, and occupational therapy
Dietary
Nursing
Laundry
Housekeeping
Physician/pharmacy

- Special setvices
Activities
Hairdressing

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
‘Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Bed tax expense :

Depreciation
Interest expense

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net
" Income {Loss) Before Transfers
Transfers:
Transfers in

Change in Net Assats

Net Assets at Beginning of Year
Net Assets at End of Year

See notes to the financial staiementis.
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Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Nursing
Home

$ 7,857,248
5,657

7,862,905

607,258
666,064
159,063

1,202,312

5,565,982

451,157
396,970
427,682

6,859
327,459
46,934

9,557,740
(1,694,835)

(389,811)
(321,321)
(110,412)

. (821.544)
)

(2,516,379

2,516,379



COUNTY OF BELKNAP, NEW HAMPSHIRE
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
' STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Nursing
Cash Flows From Operating Activities.
Receipts for services provided : $ 7,796,384
Miscellaneous receipts 7 ' - 5,657
- Operating expenses {9,405,505)
Bed tax expense ' ‘ (389,811)
Net Cash Used For Operating Activities ‘ (1,993,275}
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities: .-
Transfers in _ : 2,516,379
Net charige in advance from General Fund : 175,894
- Net Cash Provided By Noncapital Financing Activities _ 2,692,273
Cash Flows From Cabi'ta'l and Related Financing Activities: _
Acquisition and construction of capital assets ' (108,616)
Principal payments on bonds and notes e {488,954) '
Interest expense (101,428)
Net Cash Used For Capital and Related Financing Activities _ | (698,998)
Net Change in Cash and Short-Term Investments -
Cash and Short-Term lnvestmehts, Beginning of Year - 900

Cash and Short-Term Investments, End of Year $ 900

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash

Provided by {Used For) Operating Activities; ' ]
Operating loss $ (1,694,835)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used for operating activities:

Bed iax expense (389,811)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivabies {60,864}
Inveniory 740
Accounts payabie 103,176
Accrued expenses : (266,420)
Compensated absences 255,190
Net OPEB cbligation 59,549
Net Cash Used For Operating Activities 7 $ (1,993,275)

See notes to the financial statements.
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COUNTY OF BELKNAP, NEW HAMPSHIRE
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF :FlDUCIARY NET ASBETS

DECEMBER 31, 2010

Agency
Funds
ASSETS

. Cash and short-term investments ) $ 53,061
~ Accounts receivable ‘ _ : 17,088
Due from other funds 800
Total Assets ' 0§ 71,849

LIABILITIES -
Accrued expenses ' $ 28741
Due to others : © 43,108
Total Liabilities $ 71,849

See notes to the financial statements.
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COUNTY OF BELKNAP, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Notes fo the Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the County of Belknap, New Hampshire (the
County) conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as
applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the more
significant policies: :

"A. Reporting Entity

The government is a municipal corporation governed by an elected Board
of Commissioners. As required by generally accepted accounting prin-
ciples, these financial statements present the government and applicable
component units for which the government is considered to be financially
accountable.

~ Discretely Presented Component Unit :

" The component unit cofumns in the government-wide financial statements
include the financial daia of the County’s component unit, Gunstock Area
Commission (the Commission). It is reported in a separate column to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the County. The
Commission, which is incorporated as a body politic and an agency of the -
County by the State of New Hampshire in 1939, is included because the
County is responsible for selection of the Commissioners and debt issued
by the County on behalf of the Commission. Debt issued is backed by the
full faith and credit of the County.

The County may make appropriations directly to the Commission (see
Note 19). The Commission is reported as of its latest fiscal operating
year, April 30, 2010, which differs from the County’s fiscal operating year
of December 31, 2010. Separately issued financial statements of

" Gunstock Area Comimission may be obtained by writing to their Board of
Commissioners at P.O. Box 1307, Laconia, New Hampshire 03247.

B Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements o

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net
assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the
nonfiduciary activities of the primary govemment. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
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Governmental acfivities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from
certain legally separate component units for which the primary
government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function or segment is offset by program revenues.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific func-
* tion or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers

or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services,
or privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants

and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items
not properly inciuded among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues. e

‘Fund Financial Statements ,
Separate financial statements are provided for govern mental funds, pro-
prietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded
from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual govern-
“mental funds and major individuat enterprise funds are reported as sepa-
rate columns in the fund financial statements.

 Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting. and Financial Statement
Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements _ ‘

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the eco-

" nomic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting,

“as is the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Reve-
nues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liabil-
ity is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility require-
ments imposed by the provider have been met. As a general rule, the
effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the govemment-wide
financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers
or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, (2) operating
grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions, includ-
ing special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general
revenues include all taxes.
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Fund Financia! Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measur-
able and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they
are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. Generally, all other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received
by the government. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability
is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expendi-
tures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

. The government reports the following major governmental funds:

o The General Fund is the gQVemment’s primary operating fund.
It accounts for all financial resources of the general government,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proptietary fund’s principat ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the enterprise fund are charges to customers for sales and-
services. Operating expensés for enterprise funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior
to December 1, 1989 generally are followed in both the government-wide
and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those stan-
dards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of fol-
lowing subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activi-
ties and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The government
has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

The government reports the following as a major proprietary fund:

s The County Nursing Home accounts for the activities related to the
Nursing Home.

The Agency Fund is used to account for money held by the County on
behalf of others (e.g., inmate funds, patient funds, and payroll and related
benefits paid an behalf of the Belknap County Economic Development
Council).
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D. Cash énd Shorf—'Term investments

" Cash balances from all funds, except those required to be segregated by
law, are combined to form a consolidation of cash. Cash balances are
invested to the extent available, and interest earnings are recognized in
the General Fund. Certain special revenue, proprietary, and fiduciary
funds segregate cash, and investrment earnings become a part of those
funds. '

Deposits with financial institutions consist primarily of demand deposits,
certificates of deposits, and savings accounts. A cash and investment
pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds. Each fund’s
portion of this pool is reflected on the combined financial statements
under the caption “cash and short-term investments™. The interest
earnings attributable to each fund type are included under investment
income.

For purpbse of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider
investments with original maturities of three months or less to be short-
- term investments. '

E. Investments

State and local statutes place certain limitations on the nature of deposits
and investments available. Deposits in any financial institution may not
exceed certain levels within the financial institution. Non-fiduciary fund
investments can be made in securities issued by or unconditionally
guaranteed by the U.S. Government or agencies that have a maturity of
one year or less from the date of purchase and repurchase agreements
guaranteed by such securities with maturity dates of no more than 90 days
from the date of purchase.

F. Inferfund Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/ borrowing

arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as

either “due from/to other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans)

or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund
- loans).

Advances between funds are offset by a fund balance reserve account in
applicable governmental funds to indicate the portion not available for
appropriation and not available as expendable financiai resources.

G. Inventory

Inventory is valued at cost using the first—iﬁ/first—out (FIFO) method. The
cost of governmental fund-type inventory is recorded as an expenditure
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when purchased rather than when consumed. No signiﬁcarnt inventory
balances were on hand in governmental funds.

. Capital Assefs

Capital assets, which include land, land improvements, buildings and
improvements, and machinery and equipment, are reported in the applica-
ble governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government
as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $ 500 for assets
acquired for use in the Nursing Home and $ 2,500 for all other assets an
an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add fo the value
of the asset or materially extend assets fives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as pro-
jects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of
‘capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capital-
ized value of the assets constructed.

“Property, plant and eqUipmént is depreciated usingwthé'straight—line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets ' Yéars

Land improvements 10

Buildings and improvements 5 - 40

Machinery and equipment 3-20
Compensated Absences

It is the government’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned
but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. All vested sick and vacation
pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary, and
fiduciary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is
reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example,
as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in
the fund financial statements, long-term debt, and other long-term obliga-
tions are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. .
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K. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations
of fund balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are
legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Desig-
nations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are
subject to change. '

{Jse of Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures for contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic
financial statements, and the reported amounts of the revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year. Actual results could vary
from estimates that were used.

Reclassifications

" The accompanying financial statements reflect various changes in classi-

fication from the prior year.

Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A.

Budagetary Information

The County’s budget represents functional appropriations as authorized
by the County Délegation. The County Board of Commissioners may
transfer funds between operating categories as they deem necessary.
Currently there is an agreement in place requiring approval of the
Delegation on transfers in excess of $ 10,000. The County adopts

its budget under State regulations.

Budgetary Basis

The final budget appearing on the “Budget and Actual” page of the finan-
cial statements represents the final amended budget after all transfers and
supplemental appropriations.

Budget/GAAP Receonciiiation

The budgetary data for ali funds is based upon accounting principles that
differ from generally accepted accounting principies (GAAP). Therefore,
in addition to the GAAP basis financial statements, the results of opera-
tions are presented in accordance with budgetary accounting principles to
provide a meaningful comparison with budgetary data.
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The following is a summary of adjustments made to the actual revenues
and other sources, and expenditures and other uses, to conform to the
budgetary basis of accounting.

Revenues Expenditures
and Other and Other
All Funds Financing Sources Financing Uses
Revenues/Expenditures ' ,
(GAAP basis) $ 25487426 $ 24119966
Nursing Home allowance ' :
reclassification ' 109,425 109,425
Reverse capital lease not budgeted : - S (113,200)
~To reverse the effect of non-
-budgeted State contributions : :
for police retirement : - (97,965) {(97,965)
Convert accrual basis Nursing Home '
to budget basis | - 53563
- Budgetary basis $ 25498886 - $ 24071789 -

Cash and Short-Term Investments

Custodial Credif Risk - Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the
-event of a bank failure, the County's deposits may not be returned to it.

RSA 29:1, Hl states, “The amount of collected funds on deposit in any one
bank shall not at any time exceed the sum of its paid-up capital and surplus.”
The County’s deposit policy states that no investment or deposit shall be
made in any institution with a capital to asset ratio of less than 6%, unless
the investment is within FDIC insured limits or is collateralized.

As 61’ December 31, 2010, all of the County’'s bank balance of $ 6,794,781
was fully insured or collateralized.

Aliowance for Doubtiul Accountis

The allowance for doubtful accounts for Nursing Home receivables has been
estimated at $ 109,423 at December 31, 2010. Nursing Home receivables
are also reported net of contractual allowances.

27



5. Intergovernmental Receivables

This balance represents reimbursements requested from Federal and State
agencies for expenditures incurred in 2010.

5. Interfund Fund Receivables/Payables -

Although self-balancing funds are maintained, most transactions flow through
the general fund. In order to obtain accountability for each fund, interfund
receivable and payable accounts must be utilized. The following is an
analysis of the December 31, 2010 balances in interfund receivable and
payable accounts:

DLle From Due To Advance To Advance From

" Fund _ Other Funds  Other Funds Other Funds Other Funds
General Fund $ 20,841 $ - $ 3,328,008 3 .
Nonmajor Governmental

Funds - 21,641 - -
Enter’prise Funds: :

Nursing Home - - - 3,328,008
Agency Funds : 800 - - L

Total $ 21,641 $ 21,641 $ 3,328,008 $ 3,328,008

7. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2010 was as follows
(in thousands):
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Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment

‘Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumnulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements

- Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvetments
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

| ess accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
‘Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depraciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Business-type activities capital assets, nat

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases  Decreases Balance
$ 3 3 - $ - $ 3
8,303 355 - 8,658
1,508 276 - 1,784
9,814 631 - 10,445

(2) (1 - (3)
(4,942) (408) - (5,350)
(952) (141) - {1,093)
(5,396) {550} - (6,4486)
3,918 81 - 3,999
145 - - 145

145 - - 145

$ 4,063 $ 81 s - s 4144
Beginning o Ending
Balance Increases Decrsases - Balance
$ 39 $ - $ - $ 39
9,981 - - 9 981
1,158 109 - 1,267
11,178 109 - 11,287

- (38) (1) - (39)
(3,741) (263) - (4,004)
(670) {58) - {(1,028)
{4,749) (322} - {5,071)
5,429 (213) - 6,216

10 - - : 10

10 - - 10

$ 6,439 $ (213) $ - $ 6226
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the County as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Administration
County attorney
Registry of deeds
Sheriff '
Youth services
Maintenance
Corrections

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business—Typ-e Activities: . |
Nursing Home

_ Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

8. Accounté Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payab-le represent 2010 expenditures paid after December 5’)1,

2010. - -

9.  Anticipation Notes Payable

The fdllowing summarize's notes payable activity during 2010:

Balance
Issue Issue Interest Beginning New
Amount Date Rate of Year Issues

S

123,421
3,974
668
101,669
4,003
46,541

269251
549,527

321,321
321,321

Maturities

Balance
End of
Year

Tax anticipation  $ 7,300,000 312472010 120% $

$ 7,300,000 $ (7,300,000) $

10. Capital Lease Obligations

The County is the lessee of certain equipment under capital and operating
leases expiring in various years through fiscal year 2013. Future minimum
lease payments under the capital leases consisted of the following as of

‘December 31, 2010:
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Fiscal
Year
2011

2012
2013

Total

'41. Long-Term Debt

" Principal

lnterést

Total

$ 37462 $ 6238 $§ 43,700
39,668 4,032 43,700
29,056 1,696 30,752
$_106186_  $_11966 §_ 118,152

A. General Obligation Bonds

The County issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acqui-
sition and construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds
have been issued for both governmental and business-type activities.

General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General purpose bonds

Roof bonds

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:

General purpose bonds

Roof bonds

Total Business-Type Activities

B. Future Debt Service

Serial
Maturities Interest
Through  Rate(s) %
06811517  2-3%
07/15/18 26-4.0%
Serial
Maturities Interest
Through  Rate(s) %
06/15/M17 2-3%
071518 2.6-4.0%

Amount
Qutstanding
as of
12/31/10

$ 178,018
784,000

$ 962,018

Amount
Outstanding
as of
12/31/10
$ 2,171,982
1,176,000

$ 3,347,982

The annual payments to retire all general obligation long-term debt
outstanding as of December 31, 2010 are as follows:
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Governmental Principal Interest Total

2011 $ 125667 $ 32,343 § 158,010
2012 124,909 28,563 153,472
. 2013 124,151 24,798 148,949
2014 123,393 20,821 144214
2015 122,635 16,736 139,371
2016-2018 . 341,263 24 495 365,758
Total $ 962,018 $ 147,756 § 1,109,774
Business-Type Prihcigal Interest Total
2011 $ 484,333 $ 92,028 § 578,361
2012 -~ 475,091 80,523 555614
2013 465,849 69,202 535,051
2014 = 456,607 57,386 513,993
2015 - 447,365 44 252 491,617
2016-2018 1,018,737 51,878 1,070,615
Total $ 3,347,982 $ 395269 $ 3743251

C. Changes in General Long-Term Liabifities

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the fo llowing changes
occ_:u‘rred in long-term liabilities (in th_ous‘ands): ‘

. Equals
Total Total Less Long-Term
Balance Balance Current Portion

1/1110 Additions Reductions  12/31/10 Portion 12/31/10

Governmental Activities

Bonds payable $ 1088 § - $ (128) § %2 § (126) $ 836
Other:
Capital lease payable _ 35 113 42 - 108 {37) 69
Compensated absences 413 - (25) 388 (193) 195
Net OPEB obligation - 45 - 45 - 45
Other 110 - (110) - - -
Totals $ 1846 $ 158 $ (303) $_ 1,501 $ (356 $_1145
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Equals
Total Total Less Long-Term
Balance . Balance Current Pottion
1110 Additions Reductions  12/31/10 Portion 12/31/10

Business-Type Aclivilies

13.

14.

Bonds payable $ 3,837 $ - $ (489) $ 3348 § (484) § 27864
Other: ’
Compensated absences 350 ] 47 - 397 (230} 167
Net OPEB obligation - 59 - 59 - 59
Totals $ 4187 $ 106 $ (489) $ 3804 § (714) $_3090
- 12. Restricted Net Assets

The accompanying entity-wide financial statements report restricted net
assets when external constraints from grantors or contributors are placed
on net assets. '

Reserves of Fund Eguity

“Reserves” of fund equity are established to segregate fund balances wh ich
are either not available for expenditure in the future or are legally set aside for
a specific future use. .

The following types of reserves are reported at December 31, 2010:

Reserved for Special Purposes — Represents amounts set aside by the Board .
of Commissioners for various projects.

Reserved for Advances — An account used to segregate a port'ion of fund
balance to indicate that advances to other funds, although a component of
assets, do not represent available spendable resources.

Subsequenf Events

A, Debt

Subsequent to December 31, 2010, the County is planning to issue a

$ 7,500,000 tax anticipation note to be used for working capital purposes
and is expected to be received by May 18, 2011 with a maturity date of
December 30, 2011. _ :
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15.

16.

Commitments and Contingencies

Outstanding Lawsuits - There are several pending lawsuits in which the
County is involved. The County’s management is of the opinion that the
potential future settlement of such claims would not materially affect its
financia! statements taken as a whole.

Grants - Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to
audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government.
Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute

a liability of the applicable funds. The amount of expenditures which may

be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the
County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Post-Employment Health Care and Lifé Insurance Benefits

GASB Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, requires governments to
account for other post-employment benefits (OPEB), primarily healthcare,

on an accrual basis rather than on a pay-as-you-go basis. The effectis the
recognition of an actuarially required contribution as an expense on the
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets when a future
retiree earns their post-employment benefits, rather than when they use their
post-employment benefit. To the extent that an entity does not fund their
actuarially required contribution, a post—empioyment'benefit liability is recog-
nized on the Statement of Net Assets over time.

A.. Plan Descripfion -

In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the County pro-
vides post-employment health care benefits for retired employees through
the County’s plan. The benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions
and employer contributions are governed by RSA 100-A:50. As of
January 1, 2010, the actuarial valuation date, approximately 33 retirees
and 163 active employees meet the eligibility requirements. The plan
does not issue a separate financial report.

B. Benefits Provided

The County provides medical insurance to retirees and their covered
dependents. All active employees who retire from the County and meet
the eligibility criteria will receive these benefits.

C. Funding Policy

Retirees contribute 100% of the cost of the health plan.
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D. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation

The County’s fiscal 2010 annual OPEB expense is calculated based on
the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on
an ongoing basis, is projecied to cover the normal cost per year and
amortize the unfunded actuarial liability over a period of thirty years. The
following table shows the components of the County’s annual OPEB cost

~ for the year ending December 31, 2010, the amount actually contributed to
the plan, and the change in the ’s net OPEB obligation based on an actu-
arial valuation as of January 1, 2010.

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) ©§ 329242

Interest on net OPEB obligation -

Adjustment to ARC : -

' Annual OPEB cost , 329,242

‘Contributions made (224,726)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 104,516

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year -
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 104,516

The County’s ahnual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost
contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation were as foliows:

Annual o '
| OPEB Percentage of OPEB Net OPEB
Year - Cost - Cost Contributed Obligation
2010 $ 329,242 68.3% $ 104,516

E. Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the'pian as of January 1, 2010, the date of the most
recent actuarial valuation was as follows:
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Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 2,338,932
Actuarial value of plan assets -

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 2,338,932
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) ' 0%
" Covered payroll (active plan members) $ 6,425;803

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll : 36.4%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of
reported amount and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of
events far into the future. Examples included assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts deter-
mined regarding the furided status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

' Actuarial Methods and Assumptions o

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
plan as understood by the County and the plan members and include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the County and plan members
to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include tech-
niques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the January 1, 2010 actuarial valuation the projected unit credit cost
method was used. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as
the County has not advance funded its obligation. The actuarial assump-
tions included a 4.0% investment rate of return and an initial annual
healthcare cost trend rate of 10.0% which decreases to a 5.0% long-term
rate for all healthcare benefits after ten years. The amortization costs for
the initial UAAL is a level percentage of payroll for a period of 30 years, on
a closed basis. This has been calculated assuming the amortization pay-
ment increases at a rate of 0.0%. '

36



17.

Retirement Sysiem

The County follows the provisions of GASR Statement No. 27, Accounting for
Pensions for State and Local Government Employees, (as amended by
GASB 50) with respect to the employees’ retirement funds. '

A Plan Description

Full-time employees participate in the State of New Hampshire Retirement
System (the System), a multiple-employer contributory pension plan and
trust established in 1967 by RSA 100-A:2 and is qualified as a tax-exempt
‘organization under Sections 401(a) and 501(a) of the Internal Revenue
Code. The plan is a contributory, defined benefit plan providing service,
disability, death and vested retirement benefits to members and their
beneficiaries. Substantially all full-time state employees, public school

" teachers and administrators, permanent firefighters and permanent police
officers within the State of New Hampshire are eligible and required to
participate in the system. Full-time employees of political subdivisions,
including counties, municipalities and school districts, are also eligible to
participate as a group if the governing body of the political subdivision has
elected participation. '

‘The New Hampshire Retirement System, a Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS), is divided into fwo membership groups. State or local
employees and teachers belong to Group |. - Police officers and firefighters

. belong to Group II. Ali assets are held ina single trust and are available
to each group, funding policies, vesting requirements, contribution require-
ments and plan assets available to pay benefits are disclosed in the
System’s annual report available from the New Hampshire Retirement
System located at 4 Chenell Drive, Concord, New Hampshire 03301-8509.

B. Funding Policy

Covered sheriff and correctional plan members and all other employee
plan members are required to contribute 9.3% and 5%, respectively, of
their annual covered salary and the County is required to contribute atan
actuarially determined rate. The rate for sheriff and correctional plan
members is 13.66% of covered payroil through June 30, 2010 and 14.63%
thereafter. The rate for all other employees is 9.16% of covered payroll
through June 30, 2010 and 9.16% thereafter. The County’s contributions
to the System for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
were $ 843 640, $ 834,087, and $ 782,083, respectively, which were equal
to its annual required contributions for each of these years.

The payroll for employees covered by the System for the year ended

December 31, 2010, was $ 1,834,392. Contribution requirements for the
year ended December 31, 2010, were as follows:
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18.

19.

State of New Hampshire o $ 97,965

County contributions - 843,640
Employees' contributions 488,514
Total | | $ 1,430,119

Risk Management

‘The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,

damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural
disasters for which the government carries commercial insurance. There
were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year
and have been no material settlements in excess of coverage in any of the
past three fiscal years. : ' '

Gunstock Area Commission

Under the act providing for the creation of Gunstock Area Commission (the
Commission) to manage and operate the County owned recreational area,

" serial notes or bonds of such Commission are considered to be the pledge
of the full faith and credit of the County of Belknap, New Hampshire.

The County of Belknap, under agreement with Gunstock Area Commission,
funds through its annual appropriations for principal and interest payments for
four of the outstanding bond issuances of Gunstock Area Commission
through December 31, 2016, at which time the agreement may be renego-
tiated again by both parties. The Commission’s financial statements report
principal payments as a reduction in the receivable due from the County and
interest payments as an interest subsidy from the County. The principal
portion of the subsidy was recorded at the date of inception of the agreement
as a receivable due from the County. As of December 31, 2010, the County
repaid the remaining principal portion of the bond issuances of $ 109,750 of
the Commission. The Commission’s financial statements, as of Aprif 30,
2010, report a receivable from the County of $ 19,750.

For the 2010 budget year, the County delegation voted to include an appro-
priation to the Commission to pay for a portion of its current debt service
requirements. The County paid $ 113,475 for Commission debt and interest
payments as authorized by the agreement. Provisions of the agreement
further provide that the Commission will make an annual payment of

$ 150,000 to the County prior to March 31% of each year. An additional
payment is to be remitted to the County based on a percentage of the gross
income from the previous fiscal year. For the year ended April 30, 2010, a
total of $ 318,592 was recognized as a return of capital contributions to the
County in the Commission’s financial statements. This amount has been
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recoghized as miscellaneous income from the Commission in the County’s
General Fund during 2010. '

20. Beginning Fund Balance and Net Assets Restatement

The beginning (January 1, 2010) fund balances and net assets of the County
have been restated as foliows: '

Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Business-Type Activilies
Governmental Nursing  Nonmajor

Activities Home Fund Total
~ As previously reported $ 8851143 $ - % 3209 $ 3,209
Reclassification of nonmajor enterprise : '
fund to a special revenue fund 3,209 - (3,209) (3,209}
Special revenue fund not praviously ’ _
reported ' 404 - - : -
Capital assets not previously reported 337,500 - - -
As restated $ 9192256 5 - % - § -
Fund Basis Financial Statements:
' Governmental Funds Business-Type Aclivities
General Nonmajor Nursing  Nonmajor
. Fund Funds Total Home Fund Total
As previously reported $ 6547578 $ 3,308 $ 6550887 - % - 3 3,209 § 3,209
Reclassification of nonmajor
enterprise fund fo a special : .
revenue fund ' - 3,209 3,208 - (3,209) (3,209}
Special revenus fund not :
previously reported - 404 404 - - -
Compensated absences _ o
recorded as a fund basis liability 206,207 - . 208,207 - - -
As restated $ 6753785 $ 6922 § 6760707 $__ - -5 -
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GUNSTOCK AREA COMMISSION

Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Gunstock Area Commission {the Commission)
“conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
- America for local governmental units, except as indicated hereinafter. The
following is a summary of the significant accounting policies.

A. Finangial Reporting Entity

The Commission was incorporated as a body politic and an agency of the
County of Belknap (the County) by Act of the New Hampshire General
Court, effective September 15, 1959, to provide for the operation and
maintenance of the former Belknap County Recreational Area. - The
Commission is authorized to borrow funds to accomplish its purposes

~ upon approval by the County Convention. All debt has been authorized
pursuant to New Hampshire laws and carries the pledge of the full faith
and credit of the County of Belknap.

‘The Commission {a component unit of the County of Belknap, New
Hampshire) is accounted for as a separate and distinct enferprise fund
from the County.

B,' Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Commission have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized
when they are incurred. The Commission has elected not fo follow the
pronouncements as required by the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification issued after November 30, 1989 in accounting and reporting
for its proprietary operations.

C. Investments

investments are stated at their fair value. Certificates of deposit with a
maturity greater than ninety days from the date of issuance are included in
investments. '

D. Invenfaries

Merchandise available for sale is valued at the fower of cost (under the
first-in, first-out method), or market.
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E. Capital Assefs

All capital assets including infrastructure are capitalized at cost {(or esti-
mated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements during the
year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair values as of the
date received. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal mainte-
nance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assetor materially
extend an asset's life are not. Interest incurred during the construction of
_capital assets is also capitalized.

All reported capital assets except for land and construction in progress are
depreciated. Improvements, buildings and equipment are depreciated

~ over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation
is computed using the straight-line method over the foliowing useful lives:

Assets : - Years
Land improvements 5-25
Buildings and improvemenis 5-33
Equipment _ 3-20
Leasehold improvements 8

F. Compensated Absences

Employees earn vacation leave as they provide services. Pursuant to the - -
personnel policy, full time/year round employeés earn twelve to twenty
days of vacation leave on an annual basis dependent on length of service.

- Accrued and unused vacation leave has been included as a liability in

" these financial statements.

G. Netf Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net
assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balarnices on any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. Net assetls are reported as restricted when
there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the Commission or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors or faws or regulations of other
governments.

H. Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from
the primary activity of the Commission. For the Commission, these
revenues are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating
expenses, which include depreciation on capital assets, are necessary
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costs incurred to provide the service that is the primary activity of the
Commission. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as noq—operating revenues and expenses.

| Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the United States of America require manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual resuits may differ from
those estimates. Significant estimates inciude depreciation expense.

Risk Management

The Commission is exposed to various risks of losses related to toris; theft

of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries io

‘ employees; and natural disasters. -During the years ended April 30, 2010 and
2009, the Commission was a member of the New Hampshire Public Risk

Management Exchange (PRIMEX). The Trust is classified as a "Risk Pool" in

accordance with accounting principies generally accepted in the United States

of America. '

PRIMEX was organized to provide statutory worker’s compensation coverage
to member towns, cities, and other qualified political subdivisions of New -~
Hampshire. As a member of PRIMEX, the Commission shares in contributing
to the cost of and receiving benefits from a self-insured pooled risk manage-
ment program through annual member premiums. The worker's compensa-
tion benefits and employer’s liability provides coverage up o § 2,000,000 and
includes a Loss Fund from which is paid up to $ 500,000 for each and every
covered claim. ' '

The Trust agreement permits the Trust to make additional assessments to
members should there be a deficiency in Trust assets to meet its liabilities.
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
require members of pools with a sharing of risk to determine whether or not
such assessment is probable and, if s0, a reasonable estimate of such
assessment. At this ime, the Trust foresees no likelihood of an additional
assessment for any of the past years.

Claims expenses and liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss
has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated.
These losses include an estimate of claims that have been incurred but not
reported. Based on the best available information there is no liability at
April 30, 2010 or 2008.
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3. Deposits and Investments

Deposits and investments as of April 30, 2010 and 2009 are classified in the
accompanying financial statements as follows:

Statement of Net Assets:

2010 2009
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,388,836 $ 3,702,708
Investments 154,576 150,000

Total $ 1543412 $_ 3,852,708

Deposits and investments as of April 30, 2010 and 2009 consist of the

following:

2010 - 2009
Cash on hand . 8 14428 $ 12,900
Deposits with financial institutions 1,528,984 3,839,808
Total : $ 1543412 $ 3,852,708

The Comimission’s investment policy requires that deposits and investments
be made in New Hampshire based financial institutions that are participants in
one of the federal depository insurance programs. The Commission limifs its
investments to demand deposits, certificates of deposit and repurchase
agreements. ,

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the Commission’s deposits may not be returned to it. The custodial credit risk
for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to
a transaction a government will not be able to recover the value of its invest-
ment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.

The Commission's cash management program is based on a zero balance
bank account for operations. The available balance in this account is
transferred to a money market account on a daily basis. The funds in the
money market account are invested in overnight repurchase agreements.
The Commission has entered into a Federal Reserve Joint Custody Safe-
keeping Program with the Bank of New York - Mellon.

Under the terms of the agreement, as contracted with the Bank of New York -
Mellon, securities are segregated in a Joint Custody account with the title of
the Commission and the Bank. The Bank agrees to monitor the accounts and
assign securities as collateral in an amount equal to the account balances.
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Accordingly, as of April 30, 2010 and 2009, $ 1,048,837 and $ 3,358,436,
respectively of the Commission’s deposits with financial institutions were
collateralized. The Commission did not have any uninsured deposits as of
April 30, 2010 and 2008.

Accounts Receivable

All receivables are considered collectible in full and will be received within one
year, except as indicated (see note 11). A summary of the principal items of
accounts receivable is as follows:

| | 2010 2009
Belknap County $ 19750 $ 129,500
Other 117,917 288,729
Tower lease income o . 13411 4,798
Total - 151,078 423,027
Less: long-term portion - _ - (19,750}
Total current portion $ 151078 $ 403277

_ Due From Other Governments

. Receivables from other governments at April 30, 2010 consist of a federal
and state funded project. This receivable is considered collectible in full
and will be received within one year. The receivable balance of $ 132,030
represents reimbursement for eligible costs on the Commission’s bridge
project.

Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services and supplies that will benefit periods
" beyond April 30th are recorded as prepaid items. Prepaid expenses at year
end are as foliows:

010 2009
Suppiies $ - $ 1,693
Miscellaneous expenses - 2,432
Trams and tow repair parts (net of reserve,
$ 41,049 in 2010 and in 2009) 110,330 89,822
Mobile equipment repair parts 22,431 25,745
Insurance ' 53,654 105
Deposits on capital improvements 20,262 -
Total $ 216,677 $ 129,797

44



7. Capital Assets

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets during the years

ended April 30, 2010 and 2009:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Consfruction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Other capital assets:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment '
Leasehold improvements

Total other capital assets at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
{ easchold improvements

Total accumulated depreciation
Total other capital assets, net

Total capital assets, net

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Other capital assets:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Leasehold improvements

Total other capital assets at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:
L.and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Leasehold improvements

Total accumulated depreciation
Total other capital assets, net

Total capital assets, net

Balance _ Balance
5/1/09 Additicns Reductions 4130110
$ 2,014,333 § 183262 §$ - $ 2,197,585
329,735 2,580977 (2.691,443) 218,269
2,344,068 2,764,239 (2,691,443) l2,416,864
1,303,998 10,163 - 1,314,161
3,026,445 43907 - 3,970,352
18,424,599 3,084,083 (356,043) 21,152,639
358,432 - 16,514 - 374,946
24,013,474 3,154,667 (356,043) 26,812,008
(645,700) {77,115} - (722,815)
{2,573,321) {125,227} - (2,698,548)
(12.415,905) (758,918) 326,665 (12,848,158}
(53,961) {45,891) - (92,852)
(15,688,887} (1,007,151) . 326,665 (16,369,373}
8,324,587 2,147,516 (29,378) 10,442,725
$ 10,668,655 $ ) 4911755 $ (2,720,821) §_ 12,859,589
‘Balance Balance
5/1/08 Additions Reductions 4/30/09
3 2014333 5 - $ - $ 2,014,333
24,825 318,495 {13,585) - 329,735
2,038,158 318,495 {13,585) 2,344 068
785,065 518,933 - 1,303,848
3,824,608 101,837 - 3,926,445
17,232,376 1,280,844 (88,621) 18,424,599
- 358,432 - 358,432
21,842,049 2,260,046 (88,821) 24,013,474
{615,741} (26,859} - (645,700)
(2,452,375) {120,446} - (2,573,321)
(11,870,369) (633,967) 88,431 (12,415,905)
- (53,861) - {b3.861)
{14,938,985) {838,333) 88,431 (15,688,887)
6,803,064 1,421,713 {190) 8,324,587
$ 8942222 § 1,740,208 $ (13,775) $ 10,668,655
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Depreciation expense was charged as follows: | . _

2010 2009
Departmental expenses:
Trams and tows - $ 484346 $ 413,435
Children's center : - 960
Restaurant 1,362 2,095
Ski shop rentals 81,596 31,621
Ski touring 1,140 -
Ski learning center - 88
Camping and swimming pool 44 301 47,202
Programs (functions) 4574 3,382
General expenses 360,290 307,153
Administrative expenses 29 542 32,397
Total depreciation expense $ 1,007151 $ 838,333

The balance of the assets acquired through capital leases as of April 30, 2010
and 2009 is as follows: g : :

2010 2009 -
Eguipment , $ 461,075 $ 282,713
Less: Accumulated depreciation ' (67,342} {41,179)
Total depreciation expense - $_ 393733 $_ 241534

Pension Plan’

A. Money Purchase' Plan

Effective April 1, 1973, the Gunstock Area Commission entered into a
comprehensive prototype insured pension frust agreement (money
purchase plan). The plan provides for participation by employees who
have 1,000 hours of service in a twelve consecutive month period, have
completed two years of service, and have attained the age of 21. An
employee must be actively working on April 30 fo receive an employer
contribution.

Prior service is not funded. The normal retirement benefit can begin upon
attaining age sixty-five and be made under various payout options.
Employer contributions are vested immediately upon entering the plan.

Effective June 1, 2001, the Gunstock Area Commission amended the
employee pension plan. The amended plan reduces the eligibility require-
ment from two years of service to one year. Once eligible, employer
contributions are vested in increments of 20% for each year of service.
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After six years of service, the employer contributions are 100% vested.
The amended plan also reduces the employer contribution from 7% to 5%
of each participant’s compensation.

Effective September 1, 2008, the Commission’s comprehensive prototype
insured pension trust agreement (money purchase plan) was dissolved.
The monies held in this plan were transferred into a new pension plan
known as a Profit Sharing Plan. There were no covered wages paid under
this plan during the fiscal years ended Aprii 30, 2010 and 2009. The
Commission did not contribute to the plan during fiscal years 2010 and
2009. Employee contributions to the plan during fiscal years 2010 and
2009 were $ -0- and $ 9,809, respectively.

. Profit Sharing Plan

Effective September 1, 2008, the Gunstock Area Commission entered
into a profit sharing pension plan. The plan provides for participation by
employees who have 1,000 hours of service in a twelve month consecu- .
tive period and have attained the age of 21. Eligible employees may elect
to enroll in this pension plan on a semi-annual basis and are eligible for
normal retirement after age 62. Once eligible, employer contributions are’
vested in increments of 20% for each year of service. After six years of
service, the employer contributions are 100% vested. The plan further
provides that the Commission may contribute a uniform percentage of
each participant's compensation at its sole discretion. An employee must
be actively Working on April 30 to receive an employer contribution.

If a participant terminates employment prior to atfaining the normal retire-
ment age, the maximum distribution amount is $ 5,000. Prior to termina-
tion of employment, a participant may elect a distribution from his vested
account in the event of hardship or if he has attained the age of 59%.

Covered wages paid under this plan during the fiscal year ended April 30,
2010 and 2009 were $ 1,335,798 and $ 1,155,948. The Commission's
contributions to the plan during fiscal years 2010 and 2009 were $ 66,790
and $ 57,797.

. 457(b) Plan

Effective September 1, 2008, the Gunstock Area Commission entered info
a 457(b) pension plan. Employees may participate in the plan following
one year of continuous service and have attained the age of 21. Under
the plan, empioyees are eligible for normal retirement after age 62. There
are no limits on an employee’s contributions. n addition, participants are
permitted to make age 50 catch-up contributions. No matching contribu-
tion is made by the Commission. A participant’s contributions are 100%
vested immediately without regard to additional service of employment.
Prior to termination of employment, a participant may elect a distribution
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10.

from his vested account in the event of an unforeseeable emergency or if

he has attained the age of 70%2.

Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses at year end are as follows:

2009
$ 122,078
36,289
57,797

549

77,260

010
Vacation ' ' $ 129,962
Payroll ' 34,149
Pension contribution 66,790
Real estate taxes 549
Stale dated checks 1,239
Rooms and meals tax 6,099
interest _ 86,273
Total $ 325,061

$ 293,973

Short-Term Obligations

A. Revenue Anficipation Notes

The Commission issues revenue anticipation notes during the year.
These borrowings are to assist in the payment of operating expenses
during the off-season and are guaranteed to be repaid from operating
revenues of the Commission. The majority of the Commission’s operating
revenues are received during the winter months.

The changes in short-term revenue anticipation note obligations for the
years ended April 30, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

2010 2009
Balance - May 1 % - $ -
Additions 600,000 700,000
Reductions (600,000) (700,000)
Balance - April 30 $ - - 3 -
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B. Bond Ant‘icipaffoh Notes

Once the Commission has received approval by the County of Belknap
Legislative Delegation to issue bond obligations, temporary financing
arrangements may be made to borrow funds for the intended capital
improvements. During the fiscal year ending April 30, 2009, the bond
anficipation notes were paid in full, and the entire authorized debt of
$ 3.250,000 was issued in general obligation bonds. During the year
ended April 30, 2010, the Commission did not issue any shori-term bond
anticipation notes. The changes in short-term bond anticipation note

" obligations for the year ended April 30, 2009 is as follows:

Balance : Balance
5/1/08 Additions ~ Reductions 4/30/09

$ . $.1250000 $ (1,250000) $ -

11. Long-Term Obligations

A. Changes in Long-Term Obligations

The changes in long-term debt obligations for the years endeci April 30,
2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within

Type 511/03 Additions Reductions 4130110 One Year

Bonds payable ’ $ 8,991;931 3 - $ (507,236) $ 6,484,895 $ 492,236
Capital leases 130,985 160,000 (126,174) 194,811 95 980
Totals $ 71422916 $ 190,000 $§ (633410) $ 6,679,506 $ 588,216

_ Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within

Type 5/1/08 Additions Reductions 4/30/09 One Year

Bends payable $ 3621667 $ 3,775000 $ (404736) $ 6991931 $ 507,236
Capital leases 237,549 68,072 {174,836) 130,985 80,397
Tofals $ 3,850,216 $ 3,843,072 $' (579372 $ 7122916 $ 587,633
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B. General Obligation Bonds

Bonds payable at April 30, 2010 and 2009 are comprised of the following

individual issues:

$ 3,800,000 bonds due in annual installiments of $ 225,000
" beginning May 2005 through May 2012 and $ 250,000
through May 2020; interest at 3.20% - 3.80%

' $ 395 000 bonds due in annual installments of $ 19,750
through July 2019; interest at 75% of prime rate through
January 2003. On January 20, 2003, an agreement was
signed modifying the interest rate to a fixed rate of 3.19%

$ 1,615,000 bonds due in annual installﬁwents of $ 90,000
‘through January 2010; interest at 6.15% - 6.90%

$ 3,250,000 bonds due in an annual instaliment of $ 100,000

in January 2010 and $ 175,000 thereafter until January 2028;

interest at 3.500% - 4.375%

$ 525,000 bonds due in annual instaliments of $ 52,500
through October 2018; interest at 3.99%

$ 250,000 bonds due in annual instaliments of $ 12,500
through January 2019; interest at 4.98%

$ 100,000 bonds due in annual installments of § 5,000
through January 2019; interest at 5.0%

$ 47 320 bonds due in annual installments of $ 2,486
through September 2014; interest at 0%

Total

010 009
$ 2675000 $ 290,000
19,750 39,500
- 90,000
3,150,000 3,250,000
472,500 525,000
112,500 125,000
45,000 50,000
. 9945 12,431
$ 6484895 $_ 4,381,931

Debt service re'quirements to retire general obligation bonds outstanding

at April 30, 2010 are as follows:

Year Ending
April 30 Principal Interest Totals

2011 $ 492236 $ 223989 % 716,225
2012 472,486 209,569 682,055
2013 472,486 195,914 668,400
2014 497 487 181,397 678,884
2015 495 000 165,930 660,930
2016-202¢ . 2,405,000 570,585 2,975,585
2021 - 2025 1,125,000 220877 1,345,877
2026 - 2028 525,000 45,063 570,063
$ 8,298,018

Total $ 6484695 $ 1813324
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C. Debf Repayment

During May 2000, an agreement was reached between the Gunstock Area
Commission and the County of Belknap Legislative Delegation. The terms
of this agreement provide that County of Belknap will include in its annual
budget the principal and interest payments for five of the outstanding bond
issuances through December 31, 2005, at which time the agreement may
be renegotiated by both parties. The remaining notes and bonds payable
are to be paid directly by the Gunstock Area Commission. Additionally,
any new notes or bonds payable shall be repaid from the operating
receipts of the Gunstock Area Commission.

During January 2005, this agreement between the Gunstock Area
Commission and the County of Belknap Legislative Delegation was
renewed. The terms of this agreement provide that County of Belknap

~will continue to include in its annual budget the principal and interest pay-
ments for five of the outstanding bond issuances through December 31,
2010.

The following is the future principal and interest payment to be paid
directly by County of Belknap next year:

Year Ending :
April 30, Principal " Interest - Totals

2011 $ 10750 $ 593 $ 20,343

Provisions of the agreement further provide that the Gunstock Area
Commission will make an annual payment of $ 150,000 to County of
Belknap on or before March 31 of each year of this agreement. An
additional payment is to be remitted to County of Belknap within 5 working
days of receipt of the audited financial statements based on a percentage
of the gross indome for the previous fiscal year. The additional payment
required for the years ended April 30, 2010 and 2009 is $ 168,592 and

$ 172,641, respectively and has been included as a liability at year end.

Subsequent to year end, the agreement between the Gunstock Area
Commission and County of Belknap was renewed (see Note 16).

D. Capital Lease QObligations

Capital lease obligations represent lease agreements entered into for the
financing of equipment acquisitions. Capital leases payable at April 30,
2010 and 2009 are comprised of the following individual issues:
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$ 190,125 equipment lease due in monthly instaliments of
$ 10,775 befween the monhts of December and April each

year, including interest at 7.583%, through April 2011

$ 68,072 equipment lease due in monthly installments of
7 $ 9,392 between the months of December and March each
'year, including interest at 13.2%,-through March 2020 -

$ 190,000 equipment lease due in monthly installments of
$ 10,650 between the months of December and April each

year, including interest at 5.649%, through April 2013

Total

2010 2009

65 50588 S 07,493
33,492

144,223 -
$ 194811 $ 130,985

Debt service requirements to retire géneral obligation bonds outstanding
~at April 30, 2010 are as follows:

Year Ending _

April 30, Principal Interest Totals
2011 $ 05980 $ 11,145 $ 107,125
2012 48,023 5,226 53,249
2013 50,808 2,442 53,250

Total - $ 194,811 $ 18813 § 213,624

12. Lease of Area Fagcilities

A. Restaurant Eacilities

On October 15, 2007, the Commission entered into a four year agreement
with an independent company to provide exclusive food services, including
the sale of alcoholic beverages, at the Gunstock Area. The agreement will
automatically renew for an additional four year term, unless either party
notifies the other in writing prior to sixty days before the end of the initial
term. The agreement stipulates that the Commission will receive an appli-
cable percentage of gross receipts generated frorn food service sales. In
any contract year in which the aggregate commissionable sales exceed

$ 1,350,000, the Commission will receive an additional 5% commission on
the excess amount. The Commission is responsible for the utilities.
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During the years ended April 30, 2010 and 2009, the annual income
received from food service commissions was $ 279,139 and $ 298,662,
respectively.

The agreement further stipulates that the independent company is
responsible for maintenance costs and will provide $ 375,000 in capital
renovations and equipment purchases within the first eighteen months of
" the contract which will become the property of the Commission. Upon
expiration of the agreement, the independent company will be reimbursed
for the undepreciated balance of its capital purchases. The net book
value of these capital renovations and equipment purchases are reported
as leasehold improvements of the Commission and an offsetting payable
at fiscal year end. Capital contributions are recognized by the Commis-
sion as the capitalized leasehold improvements are depreciated over their
estimated useful life. :

For the years ended April 30, 2010 and 2009 the net book value of the
leasehold improvements was $ 275,094 and $ 304,471, respectively, and
the recognized capital contributions were $ 45,891 and $ 53,961,
respectively. .

. Land Parcel

During February 1993, the Commission entered into an intial five year
agreement to lease a parcel of land to a corporation on which they may
construct and operate a facility to conduct cellular radio, telephone and
other telecommunications operations. Per the agreement, the lessee has
the option to renew and extend this lease agreement for five separate and
successive five year periods. During February 2008, the option to renew
this agreement was extended for another five years until Jan uary 31,
2013.

On June 3, 1998 the Commission signed an amendment to the land parcel
lease. This amendment provides that the Area will receive 25% of rental
income if the land parcel is subleased o another entity.

During June 2009, the Commission signed an additional amendment to
the land parcel lease to increase the size of the parcel of land being
leased to a corporation. The monthly rent is subject to an increase of

$ 1,800 per month which shall not be effective until the earlier of ninety
days from the issuance of a building permit to start construction of the new
replacement tower on the premises or upon the commencement of tower
lease rental payment for the new antennae on the replacement tower.
This new agreement further provides that commencing February 1,2013
and each five year anniversary thereafter, the rent for each five year ferm
shall increase based on the percentage change in the Consumer Price
Index published by the Bureau of Labor and Statistics of the United States
Department of Labor for ali Urban Consumers, US City Average.
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13.

The agreement provides that the Area will receive rent payable in equal
monthly installments. During the years ended April 30, 2010 and 2008,
the annual incoime from the land lease was $ 31,484 and $ 31,484,
respectively. The lessee is responsible for real estate taxes and ufilities.

. Tower L eases

The Commission has entered into various agreements o lease tower
space to several independent companies for telecommunication and radio
operations. These lease agreements range from being renewed on an
annual basis to long-term agreements for a period of five years.

Tower lease rentals are payable in rhonthly installments. In addition, the
Area will receive an annual frade agreement of signal time from the
lessee. During the years ended April 30, 2010 and 2009, the annual,

~income from tower leases was $ 42,991 and $ 43,737, respectively.

. Soul Festival

During June 2006, the Commission entered into a five year agreement
with a corporation to grant them the right to conduct the Soul Festival at
the Gunstock Area Commission. The first event was held in August 2005.
At the conclusion of the 2011 event, the terms and conditions of the
agreement shall automatically renew in two five-year terms with the last

event to be held in August 2021. Terms of the agreement provide that the -

Commission will retain campsite sales up to $ 100,000 and 50% of these
sales thereafter. In addition, the Commission will retain the income from
summit chair lift rides up to $ 8,000. During the years ended April 30,

2010 and 2009, the annual income from the Soul Festival was as follows:

2010 2009
Camping _ '$ 113530 § 117,200
Chair lift rides 38,855 45995
Total $ 152385 § 163,185

Net Assets.

Unrestricted net assets as of April 30, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

2010 2009
Designated for future debt service payments $ 904576 $ 900,000
Undesignated (deficit) (681,5006) 1,636,902
Total $ 223070 $_ 2,536,902
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15.

16.

Operating and Financing Arrangements

During the years ended April 30, 2010 and 20089, the County provided the
Commission a subsidy of $ 116,892 and $ 175,620, respectively for the
purposes of servicing a portion of the Commission's debt (see nofe 11). The
principal portion of the subsidy was recorded at the date of inception of the
agreement as a receivable due from the County. The interest portion of the
subsidy of $ 7,142 and $ 15,8670 is recorded as an operating subsidy in the
statement of operations for the years ended April 30, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Commitments and Contingencies

A. Property and Liability Insurance

The Commission has acquired property and liability insurance, which is
administered through a commercial insurer. General liability provides
coverage up to $ 1,000,000 per incident and in the aggregate; the
Commission’s deductible is $ 15,000 per incident and $ 75,000 in the
aggregate. Umbrella liability provides coverage up to $6,000,000 per
incident with a general aggregate limit of $ 12,000,000. The Commission

" has a self-insurance retention plan of $ 10,000 for umbrelia liability.

Insurance coverage for scheduled buildings and contents is $ 3,000,000;
the Commission’s deductible is $ 10,000 per incident, except for flood or
earthquake at $ 25,000 per incident.

B. Litigation

Gunstock Area Commission is involved in certain litigation in the ordinary
course of business, primarily its ski operations. Management, based on
discussions with its insurer, is of the opinion that the ultimate disposition of
these matters will not result in a material effect on the financial condition

or results of operations at Gunstock Area Commission.

Subseguent Eventés

A. Revenue Antigipation Nofes

The Commission secured a line of credit up to $ 1,200,000 during August
2010. Any borrowings are guaranteed to be repaid from operating
revenues of the Commission. Subsequent to year end, the Commission
has borrowed $ 700,000 against this line of credit. The interest rate on
this line of credit is 1.15%. The borrowed amount, and accrued interest, is
due on February 28, 2011.
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B. Debt Repayment

During October 2010, an agreement was reached between the Gunstock

Area Commission and the County of Belknap Legislative Delegation. The
terms of this agreement provide that the Gunstock Area Commission will

pay $ 175,000 annually to County of Belknap for the next five years.
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COUNTY OF BELKNAP, NEW HAMPSHIRE
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Dacember 31, 2010

(Unaudited)
{Amounts Expressed in thousands}

Other Post-Employment Benefits

Actuarial

Accrued

Liability

Actuarial (AAL) - Unfunded
Actuarial Value of  Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered
Valuation Assets Credit Cost (UAAL) " Ratio Payroll
Date (a) (b} (b-a) (alb) )

01/01/10 $ - - $ 2,339 $ 2,339 0.0% $ 6426

See Independent Auditors’ Report.
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" UAAL as

a Percent-
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Covered
Payroli
[(b-a)/c]
36.40%



